M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 25, 2003
9:02 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 29, Side A
SFC 03 # 29, Side B
SFC 03 # 30, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:02 AM
PRESENT

Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Al so Attending: KEVIN BROCKS, Director, D vision of Adm nistrative
Services, Departnent of Fish and Ganme; M KE MAHER, Director,
Di vision of Statew de Public Service, Departnent of Environnental
Conservati on; KRI STIN RYAN, Acting Director, D vision of
Environnental Heal th, Departnment of Environnental Conservation

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Wangell: JULI E DECKER, Regi onal
Di rector, Southeast Al aska Dive Association; Froman Ofnet Site:
TOM CHAPPLE, Director, Division of Air & Water Quality, Departnent
of Environmental Conservation

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 100- APPROP: CAPI TAL PRQJECTS

The Conmittee heard presentations fromthe Departnent of Fish and
Game and Departnent of Environnental Conservation. The bill was
held in Cormmttee.

#sb100

SFC- 03 (1) 03/ 25/ 03



SENATE BI LL NO. 100

"An Act making capital appropriations and reappropriations;
capitalizing a fund; maki ng appropriations under art. |X sec.
17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date."

This was the sixth hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair WIlken distributed a financial summary titled "FY 04
Distribution of Alaska’s NPR-A Royalties" [copy on file] that his
office prepared as result of the discussion on this matter during
t he Departnent of Comrunity and Econom c Devel opnent presentation
at the March 24, 2003 Committee neeting.

Departnent of Fish and Gane

Def erred Mai ntenance Facilities

$ 400, 000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 30128

Proj ect Type: Deferred Mintenance

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008
On- Goi ng Proj ect

This project wll provide for repair, naintenance and
renovati on of departnent facilities statew de.

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Fish and Ganme, explained that this is the first of
five deferred mai ntenance capital project requests, totaling $1.8
mllion in general funds, that the Departnment woul d be presenting.
M. Brooks stated that this annual deferred maintenance request
woul d address deferred maintenance needs for such things as
bunkhouses, warehouses, |aboratories, and offices in nore than 40
communi ties, statewi de. He comunicated that while a total deferred
mai nt enance need of $4 nillion has been identified, the projects
t hat have been deened "critical needs"” are included in this request
and are listed in the backup information. Furthernore, he attested,
t hese projects woul d be addressed on an "urgent" repair need basis
with consideration being given to life, health and safety code
i ssues. He specified that the goal of upgrading a facility is to
provide it with an additional twenty-year |ife.

SFC- 03 (2) 03/ 25/ 03



Vessel and Aircraft Repair and Mintenance

$ 300, 000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 30129

Project Type: Renovation and Renodel i ng

Category: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008

On- Goi ng Proj ect

This project will provide funding to maintain the departnent’'s
research vessels and aircraft, which are used to support
fishery nmonitoring efforts and stock assessnent prograns.
Mai nt enance work to be done includes replacing the gensets,
sandbl ast and pai nt, overhaul engines, general yard work and
i nspection, and replacing fishing gear and aircraft manuals. A
portion of this P will be used to replace the O Kisutch, and
unstaffed vessels used in SE Al aska.

M. Brooks stated that this deferred maintenance request would
address the needs of aircraft and five research vessels that are
used in the Division of Comrercial Fisheries. He stated that this
request woul d address |arge mai ntenance projects as he specified
that routine maintenance needs are included in the Departnent's
oper ati ng budget.

Senator O son asked the nunber of aircraft operated by the
Di vi sion.

M . Brooks specified that the Division operates four aircraft, and
charters aircraft and uses comercial planes as needed. He
communi cated that the costs associated with the chartering of
commercial aircraft and vessels has historically exceeded $2.5
mllion annually.

Senator O son clarified, therefore, that the Division contracts
with private pilots.

M . Brooks confirned.

Senat or O son asked whether the State has recently changed contract
requi renents.

M. Brooks stated that no changes have occurred. He noted that the
Departnent maintains a list of private airline conpanies that neet
the Departnent's specified requirenents.

Senator O son voiced the understanding that these eligibility
requi renents have been expanded at the request of private pilots

SFC- 03 (3) 03/ 25/ 03



who are currently under contract with the State.

M. Brooks replied that he is unaware of any recent changes. He
asked that specifics be provided.

Senat or O son comuni cated the understanding that the requirenents
being mandated for contract pilots now exceeds the requirenent
| evel s of State enpl oyed pilots.

M. Brooks stated that he would investigate this concern.
Senat or O son asked the nunber of State enployed pilots.
M. Brooks stated that he would supply this informtion.

Senator O son asked the nunber of accidents that have been
experienced by State aircraft to warrant this $300, 000 request.

M. Brooks noted that no aircraft accidents have occurred recently,
and he conmmuni cated that this request is "weighted toward" State
vessel nmintenance as opposed to aircraft repair. He stated that
the purpose of this request is to avoid accidents that m ght result
from mai nt enance needs.

Senator O son asked for confirmation that aircraft engi ne overhaul s
are included in this request.

M. Brooks expressed that although the mgjority of this funding
woul d be wused to support vessel nmaintenance, aircraft engine
over haul woul d be provided if necessary.

Senator O son stated that overhauling an engine is detailed work
and requires extensive equi pnent. He asked whether this procedure
woul d be conducted in house.

M. Brooks specified that in addition to Departnent enployees, the
State contracts with comrercial providers to perform maintenance
when the scope of the work exceeds the abilities of enployees or
equi pnent. He stated that contract work is conducted on both
aircraft and vessel repairs.

Senat or Bunde observed that the State nmintenance facility where
this work is usually conducted is capable of providing fabric and
sheet netal work; however, he concurred with Senator O son that
engi ne overhaul capabilities mght be |imted.

Senator O son opined that the specialized type of equipnent that is
required for engine overhauls is not available in the State

SFC- 03 (4) 03/ 25/ 03



facility.

Senat or Tayl or asked whet her the Departnent woul d be purchasi ng any
new equi pnent in FY 04.

M . Brooks responded that no vessel replacenent is being requested
in this budget; however, he rem nded that the Departnent received
authority in FY 03 to purchase a replacenent vessel

Senat or Tayl or asked whether the reference in the backup materi al
speci fying that $100,000 of this request would be used toward the
repl acenent of the MV OKisutch, is a continuation of the FY 03
vessel replacenent authorization.

M. Brooks replied no as the FY 03 authorization would provide for
a larger manned vessel. He clarified that the MV O Kisutch is an
ol der "unmanned" vessel .

Senat or Taylor asked for further information pertaining to the
purchase of a gillnet boat used for patrol in the Petersburg area.

M. Brooks clarified that this vessel, the MV Kittiwake, was
purchased a few years prior. He stated that there were two
respondents to the Departnent’'s solicitation for a vessel, and that
a purchase transpired. He stated that "extensive" docunentation
regarding this purchase is avail abl e.

Senat or Taylor declared that the "vessel was purchased out of
personnel funds." He communi cated that the response to his inquiry
regarding how the Departnent could use personnel funds in this
manner was that because the Departnent's managenent believed that
the Legislature was not going to appropriate funds for the boat,
they used personnel funds to purchase it. This action, Senator
Tayl or attested, pronpted him to ask whether the Departnent has
pl ans to purchase anot her boat.

M. Brooks responded that the vessel in question was purchased with
a conbi nation of operating and capital funds. He stated that the
Di vi sion of Conmmercial Fisheries annual budget is approxinmately $45
mllion, and he furthered that upon a fourth quarter budget review
of the year in question, it was determ ned that operating funds
were avail abl e to suppl enent capital funds that were appropriated
toward the purchase of a replacenent vessel

Senator Taylor asked whether the Departnment would |everage
personnel funds in this manner again.

M. Brooks conmmuni cated that operating funds were |leveraged in this

SFC- 03 (5) 03/ 25/ 03



purchase. He could not confirmthat personnel funds were used.

Senator Taylor avowed that they were and that he could produce
docunentation to substantiate this.

M. Brooks responded that $100,000 is a very small percent of the
Departnent's overall $45 million operating funds budget, and he
stated that it would be difficult to ascertain whether the nonies
that Senator Taylor is referring to were used to refurbish the
vessel , purchase the vessel, or to provide maintenance funding. He
stated that, as historically conducted, the Departnent includes
vessel replacenent requests in its capital budget requests, and, in
conclusion, he specified that the vessel appropriation that has
been granted to the Departnent woul d be used toward that purpose.

Senator O son voiced that it is "alnost disturbing” that the
testifier is "justifying" the Departnment's action in this matter.
Furthernore, he voiced concern that the Departnment mght be
utilizing its operating budget appropriation "indiscrimnately" and
Wi thout regard "to Legislative oversight.” Wth that in mnd, he
asked whet her the Departnent has plans to purchase any new aircraft
in FY 04.

M. Brooks responded that no new aircraft would be purchased in FY
04. He responded to Senator O son's comments by stating that the
Department respects the authoritative position of the Legislature
and does not spend its funds in an indiscrimnate manner.

Senator O son asked to be provided a copy of the docunentation that
Senat or Tayl or referenced.

M. Brooks stated that docunentation regarding the purchase of the
vessel woul d be provided.

Co-Chair W1 ken asked Senator Taylor to provide a copy of the
af orementi oned docunentation to Senator d son

Co-Chair Wl ken sumarized the testifier's coments to be that, to
M. Brooks' "know edge, there is no plan in the FY 04 budget to
| everage operating funds to purchase capital equipnment, and if
there is," the testifier would inform the Commttee of the
situation.

M. Brooks concurred and stated that, other than the equipnent
specified in the operating budget request, no other equipnent woul d
be purchased.

Senat or Hof fman noted that the backup nmaterial indicates that other

SFC- 03 (6) 03/ 25/ 03



Departnents utilize some of the Departnent of Fish and Gane's
aircraft and vessels. He asked how often this occurs.

M. Brooks responded that the Department permts other Departnents
and agencies such as the Departnent of Public Safety to use its
aircraft and vessels "in the of f-season,” when fishery research is
not being as heavily conducted. He stated that detailed "charter
day" information could be provided.

Dock Repairs, Mintenance & Repl acenent

$ 300, 000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 6916

Proj ect Type: Deferred Mintenance

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: King Sal non

Election District: Bristol Bay/Al eutians

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

Phased Proj ect

Safe and functional docks and waterfront facilities are
critical for the departnent to perform many of its prinmary
m ssi ons. The depart nment has identified structural
deficiencies at its King Salnon, Cordova and Petersburg
facilities. The scope and magni tude of the needed repairs has
resulted in separate funding requests apart from our annual
deferred mai ntenance project for facilities. The departnent
has taken a phased approach to these projects and has received
funding in each of the past three fiscal years. Continued
funding in the FY 2004 CIP budget should provide for
conpl etion of the King Salnon project and initiate the design
phase for the Cordova dock project, to be conpleted in FY 04-
06.

M. Brooks explained that while this is a deferred nmintenance
need, the cost of some projects, such as this King Sal non dock
repair project, would utilize the nmgjority of the historical
def erred mai nt enance appropriation. Therefore, he noted that these
projects are being presented separately from the deferred
mai nt enance multi-project request. He stated that in addition to
providing funds for the final phase of the King Salnon dock
facility, which is also used by the Division of Fish & Wldlife
Protection in the Departnent of Public Safety, this request would
provi de funds to conduct design work for the Cordova Dock, and
address the refurbi shnent of the Petersburg dock facility.

War ehouse/ Bunkhouse Repl acenent Cor dova, Bet hel
$ 450,000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 37932

Project Type: Health and Safety

SFC- 03 (7) 03/ 25/ 03



Cat egory: Devel opnent

Location: Cordova

Election District: Cordoval/ Sout heast 1sl ands

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008

Phased Proj ect

Previ ous deferred maintenance CIP Budgets have routinely
listed mmjor projects necessary to upgrade and nmaintain
conmpound facilities in Cordova and Bethel as well as other
stat ewi de conmpounds. Due to the size of the projects needed in
these locations, they no longer fit into a general deferred
mai nt enance request. This proposal will fund the repl acenent
and upgrade of enployee housing and warehouse facilities at
Cordova and Bethel. Both of these installations are |ong-tine
ADF&G conpounds and have reached the point where mai ntenance
is not an option. Replacenent and upgrades to the facilities
are now warr ant ed.

M. Brooks specified that this project would replace "very old and
di | api dated” nobile hones and trailer bunkhouse facilities in
Cordova and Bethel with commercial nodular style units that are
specifically designed for the Al askan environnent in order to
provi de safe and dry accommodations to field season workers. He
stated that this is a phased project with a total estinmated cost of
$1.3 mllion. He stated that because the Department conducts "joint
m ssions”, it would work collaboratively with other agencies and
departnments such as the Departnent of Public Safety.

Senat or Tayl or asked whether these facilities provide seasonal or
year - round housi ng.

M. Brooks clarified that these facilities operate seasonally and
woul d house approximately twel ve enpl oyees during peak tines.

Senator Taylor clarified that both the Cordova and King Sal non
facilities would be used seasonal ly.

M . Brooks concurred.

Kenai Ri ver Sonar Site Bunkhouse and Lab

$ 350,000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 37808

Project Type: Renewal and Repl acenent

Category: Natural Resources

Locati on: Kenali

Election District: Kenai/ Sol dot na

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

This CIP request will replace the aging trailer house at the

SFC- 03 (8) 03/ 25/ 03



Kenai River mle 19 sonar site. The new facility would be a
nodern nodul ar house simlar to the one recently installed at
Ki ng Sal non.

M. Brooks specified that this funding would all ow the construction
of a new facility to replace the 30-year old, 1200 square foot
seasonal -use nobile hone that currently serves as a bunkhouse, a
| aboratory, and a storage facility at the Mle 19 Kenai R ver sonar
site.

Senat or Bunde asked how this facility, as well as the King Sal non
and Cordova facilities, are nothballed and naintained during the
of f - season.

M. Brooks responded that wi nterization of these well-insul ated
"Al aska Pack" designed facilities would be conducted in the fall by
"basically draining the pipes." He noted that while the bunkhouses
would not be utilized during the winter, year-round Departnent
staff would be able to nonitor any maintenance needs that m ght
ari se.

Co-Chair W/I ken asked the nunber of people who could be housed at
the Kenai River site.

M . Brooks responded that there are two bunks in each of the two
bedroons and that on a tenporary basis, the facility could house up
to ei ght people.

Co-Chair WIlken surmsed therefore that the bunkhouse would
accomodat e between four to eight people.

M . Brooks concurred.

Senat or Tayl or asked pertaining the need to double the size of
these facilities at a per-cost of approximtely $300,000 when
traditional facilities have been nmuch snaller and | ess costly.

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent recognizes that the
current facilities are "inadequate" and do not properly protect the
State’s personnel and nodern sonar and | aboratory equi pment. He
stated that the nodular units being proposed, while expensive,
shoul d be considered as an investnent because they woul d function
efficiently and woul d protect personnel, equipnent, and information
for the long-term He noted that transportation costs additionally
contribute to the expense.

Senat or Tayl or voiced that the expense is unwarranted.

SFC- 03 (9) 03/ 25/ 03



Co-Chair W1 ken announced, for the record, that the Fairbanks,
W angel |, and Anchorage Legislative Information Ofices (LIGs) are
on tel econference.

Senator Tayl or requested that the Commttee's Departnent of Fish
and Gane subconmmittee investigate the effectiveness of the sonar
equi pnrent and the data that is being generated. Furthernore, he
understood that the equipnment is unable to differentiate between
fish species effectively.

Co-Chair Wl ken commented that Senator B. Stevens is the chair of
t he Departnent of Fish and Game subcommittee.

M. Brooks noted that while ol der sonar technol ogy has difficulty
detecting differing types of species, "the new technology is much
improved in that regard.™

Wat erf oW Conservation and Enhancenent Program

$ 256, 700 Fi sh/ Gane

Ref erence No.: 35896

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

On- Goi ng Proj ect

Reaut hori ze and appropriate funds to continue the Waterfow
Conservation and Enhancenent Program for five years. This
program was established through the state duck stanp act (Ch.
71 SLA 1984) and operates in accordance with AS 16.05.826 and
AS 16.05.130(b). By legislative intent and specified purposes,
it funds conservation projects that provide benefits to
wat erfow and public use of waterfow. This AP is intended to
sustain a |l ong-term program of |and acquisition and easenents
to secure valuable waterfow habitats and public access,
resource enhancenent projects and a variety of conservation
activities to increase public appreciation of waterfow and
their habitats.

M. Brooks stated that, to date, $1,270,000 of the total $1,526, 700
proceeds generated fromthe sale of duck stanp art prints, has been
appropriated to support waterfowl conservation projects in the
State. He explained that this request would allow the remaining
$256, 700 to be appropriated to the Departnment via proposed
acconpanyi ng operati ng budget conpani on | anguage that woul d specify
that this noney be transferred fromthe general fund to the Fish &
Game Fund, as he noted, that while the revenue fromthe prints is
earmarked in this manner, the proceeds fromthe sale of duck stanps

SFC- 03 (10) 03/ 25/ 03



are deposited into the general fund.

Senat or Bunde voi ced appreciation for the Departnent's efforts in
this endeavor; however, he noted that marketing efforts pronoting
the sale of these prints have "been less than enthusiastic.”" He
asked whet her the issue of pronoting sales would be addressed.

M. Brooks acknow edged that waterfowl print revenue has been
declining since its inception fifteen years prior. He noted that
while the prints continue to be popular with collectors, pronoting
single sales to new consuners has been challenging. In addition, he
expl ai ned that only one vendor sells the prints.

Senat or Bunde asked whet her ot her marketing opportunities, such as
utilizing the prints' artists' marketing venues, are being
consi der ed.

M. Brooks acknow edged that a successful marketing plan is
i nportant; however, he stated that the program coordi nator woul d be
required to provide further information regarding these efforts.

Senat or O son asked whet her economc factors mght result in the
program bei ng di sconti nued.

M. Brooks voiced that the waterfow stanp program woul d conti nue;
however, he stated that in order to continue the print program it
nmust to "sel f-supporting.”

Senator Tayl or asked what specific land acquisitions have been
realized as a result of the program

M. Brooks stated that specific information would be supplied to
the Commttee; however, he noted that, in general, the |and that
has been acquired includes such things as small estuaries, snal
parcels of prinme habitat, and other areas that are unsuitable for
devel opnment. He identified the Palmer Hay Flats as one of these
| and acqui sition enhancenent areas.

Senator Taylor asked whether these funds would be utilized to
provi de access routes to other lands or whether the land that is
purchased woul d be acquired and then "l ocked up."

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent nmanages a separate access
program He furthered that this funding is specified to further
habi tat enhancenent, and that, while sone small parcels are
purchased, that is not the primary purpose of the program

Senator Taylor inquired as to the definition of habitat

SFC- 03 (11) 03/ 25/ 03



enhancenent .

M. Brooks replied that habitat enhancenent efforts include such
things as controlled burns.

Senat or Bunde voiced that it is inportant to note that duck hunting
i's encouraged rather than discouraged or prohibited in these areas.
He exanpl ed that the funds have allowed the Departnent to actually
i nprove access routes in such places as the Palner Hay Flats State
Ganme Ref uge.

Senat or Hof f man asked what the average acquisition cost per acre is
for these habitat enhancenent areas.

M. Brooks noted that this information is included in the backup
mat eri al .

Senat or Hof f man expressed that the anobunt of $41 per acre, that is
referenced, appears to be a |ow price.

M. Brooks specified that $41 an acre was the price paid for the
Pal mer Hay Flats area. He furthered that the price per acre would
vary fromparcel to parcel. He verified that the purpose of these
acquisitions in not to purchase land and "set it aside,” but is
create areas and access to areas to provide areas where people
coul d hunt.

Senat or Hof f man requested that the average price per acre for the
previous three years of these |and acquisitions be provided to the
Conmittee.

AT EASE 9:41 AM/ 9:41 AM

Sport Fish and Recreational Boating and Non-Boating Access
Proj ects
$ 2,600, 000
$1, 950, 000 Federal Receipts
$ 650, 000 Fish/ Gane
Ref erence No.: 30432
Project Type: Construction
Cat egory: Devel opnent
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008
On- Goi ng Proj ect
State Match Required
This project will provide funds to the Division of Sport Fish
to construct boating and sport fishing access facilities

SFC- 03 (12) 03/ 25/ 03



t hroughout the state. The Sport Fish Restoration (SFR) program
requi res that 15% of the federal funds available to Sport Fish
be used for recreational boating access devel opnent. SFR funds
may al so be used to devel op access facilities for non-boating
angl ers.

M . Brooks explained that Fish & Gane funds would provide the 25
percent match that is required for this program which would
provi de access to fishing sites throughout the State.

Senator Tayl or asked which specific projects would be conducted
this year.

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent would supply a list to the
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whether the State match would be funded by
revenue generated fromthe sale of State fishing |icenses.

M. Brooks responded in the affirmative.

Transi ent Boat Morage Facilities

$ 500, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 35714

Proj ect Type: Construction

Cat egory: Devel opnent

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

On- Goi ng Proj ect

This project will provide funds to the Division of Sport Fish
for new transient noorage docks for |arge recreational
boat ers. The work wll be accomplished by working
cooperatively with local conmunities.

M. Brooks explained that this project would provide transient
noorage specifically geared for vessels 26 feet or |onger. He noted
that this "safe harbor” noorage would provide vessels in transit
wth "rest stop" anenities along the water, particularly in
Sout heast Al aska, that would be simlar to "rest stops along a
hi ghway. "

Co-Chair WIken asked that a |list of proposed FY 03 and FY 04
projects be supplied to the Cormittee.

Senator Taylor questioned whether the Departnment would be

coordi nating these noorage facilities with the D vision of Parks &
Qut door Recreation in the Departnment of Natural Resources, as he

SFC- 03 (13) 03/ 25/ 03



understood that there is not currently a single buoy or nooring
facility, picnic table, or outhouse at any of these 17 designated
mari ne parks in Southeast Al aska.

M . Brooks responded that the Departnent "works hand in hand" in
coordinating both the on-land access projects referenced in the
Sport Fish and Recreational Boating and Non-Boating Access
Projects, Reference No. 30432 and this transient noorage project.

Senat or Tayl or asked that a |list of the noorage facilities that
woul d be constructed within these 17 marine parks be provided to
the Conmittee.

M. Brooks stated that this information would be provided.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whether this type of federal funding support
is anticipated to conti nue.

M. Brooks responded that the access projects would continue to
receive federal funding because 15 percent of those funds is
desi gnated to support access projects; however, he noted that the
federal transient boat noorage funding is inconsistent. He surm sed
that, in the future, it mght be allocated on a biennial basis.

Equi prent for WIdlife Conservation Prograns Statew de

$ 100, 000 Fi sh/ Gane Funds

Ref erence No.: 35794

Proj ect Type: Equi prment

Category: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008

On- Goi ng Proj ect

Wldlife Conservation deferred equipnent replacenent and
mai nt enance for several years in order to nore fully fund
managenent and research prograns necessary for responsible
resource nmanagenent. Division staff in 23 |ocations have a
constant need to replace outdated and broken equi pnent for
field research and managenent. In sone cases this outdated
equi pnent is no longer safe or reliable under normal field use
and conditions. Needed equi pnent includes: snow machi nes,
printer/plotter, all-terrain vehicles, outboard notors &
boats, and aircraft engines.

\Yg Brooks stated that this project would provide standard

equi prrent repl acenent for such things as snowrobil es and skiffs as
required in the operation of the Departnent's managenent prograns.

SFC- 03 (14) 03/ 25/ 03



Senat or Bunde asked the Departnent's involvenent in the | and nobile
radio (LMR) system

M. Brooks responded that while the Departnent has been involved in
di scussi ons bei ng conducted by the Departnent of Admnistration and
the Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs, its involvenent
could be characterized as a "small player." He attested; however,
that the Departnment would benefit from the inplenentation of the
LMR conmuni cati ons system

Senat or Bunde encouraged the Departnent to cal cul ate the expense of
i npl enenting that system and "when appropriate” supply that
information to the Commttee.

Senat or Tayl or noted that this request would fund aviation safety
hel mets and aircraft engine repair. He asked whether these safety
hel nets are a new requirenent.

Senator O son voi ced support for utilization of aviation hel nets.

SFC 03 # 29, Side B 09:49 AM

Senator d son voiced that the nmi ntenance of avi ati on headsets and
ot her equi pnment is inportant.

Senat or Taylor inquired why aircraft engines are included in this
request, as he noted they are also specified in Reference No.
30129, Vessel and Aircraft Repair and M ntenance.

M. Brooks responded that the Reference No. 30129, Vessel and
Aircraft Repair and M ntenance, pertains to equipnent for the four
aircraft operated by the Division of Comrercial Fisheries, while
this request refers to the two aircraft operated by the D vision of
Fish & Wldlife.

Senat or O son voiced support for providing Departnent personne
with aviation headsets, as he attested, this allows themto provide
their own equi pnent when using contract aircraft.

Senat or Tayl or voiced support for the use of headsets.

Senat or Tayl or asked that a conplete inventory of State aircraft
and their usage areas be provided to the Conmttee. He cal cul ated
that, in addition to the six aircraft owned by the Departnent of
Fish and Gane, approximtely 46 are operated by the Departnent of
Public Safety, and one is owned by the Departnent of Natural

SFC- 03 (15) 03/ 25/ 03



Resour ces.

M. Brooks stated that the Departnment would supply a list of its
aircraft. He noted that in addition to the aircraft owned by the
Department, contract aircraft and vessels, at an expense of two
mllion dollars a year, are also used by the Departnent.

Senat or O son declared that that the cost of contract aircraft is
justified, as the expense the State would incur from aircraft
mai nt enance on a year-round basis, is exorbitant.

Co-Chair WIken asked Senator Taylor to clarify his question
concerning the total nunber of State-owned aircraft.

Senator Taylor voiced that the information regarding the type,
guantity, and usage of State-owned aircraft should be conpiled. He
echoed Senator dson's earlier concern regarding whether the
Department has recently increased the nunber of qualifying hours
that a pilot nust have in order to be considered for a State
contract.

Co-Chair W/l ken asked the Departnent to conpile a list of the
aircraft that it owns and has under contract. He stated that this
i nformation woul d be requested from other Departnments as well. He
noted that the Departnent would al so supply information pertaining
to private pilot contracts with the State.

Senat or O son al so voiced concern regarding the State’s nandated
I nsurance coverage per seat per aircraft, as he understood that the
requi red coverage has increased from $150, 000 per seat to $300, 000
per seat.

M. Brooks replied that rather than the per seat insurance increase
being initiated by the Departnent, the change was dictated either
by federal or State law. He stated that he would investigate the
situation.

Senator O son declared that $300,000 is "an odd nunber" as sone
aircraft certificates require $500, 000 per seat coverage as opposed
"to this seemingly arbitrary" $300, 000 requirenent.

Near shore Marine Research Studies - V
$ 998, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38484

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

SFC- 03 (16) 03/ 25/ 03



Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

Funds fromthe National Marine Fisheries Service (NVWS) w |
be used to devel op nearshore comercial fisheries that foster
econom ¢ devel opnent of coastal communities.

M. Brooks stated that this is a federally funded project whose
goal is to enhance and pronote snmall nearshore fisheries. He stated
that previous nearshore species that have been economcally
devel oped include sea urchins, sea cucunbers, razor clanms, and
geoducks.

Co-Chair WIlken noted that four mllion dollars has been spent
during the previous tw years, and he asked how the programs
results are being neasured.

M. Brooks responded that usually this type of program would be
i ncluded in the operating budget; however, he continued its "three-
year horizon" funneled it to the capital budget. Nonethel ess, he
stated that the Conmttee's Departnent of Fish & Gane operating
budget subcommittee has di scussed this program He furthered that
t he success of the programis gauged by whether a fishery could be
devel oped and thereby, provide an economc opportunity to
fi shermen.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whether this federal funding is expected to
conti nue.

M. Brooks stated that this is the fifth year that the funds have
been nade available; therefore, he believed the program would
conti nue.

Senat or Hoffrman asked the "Departnent to report what activities
have taken place along the Al eutian chain and north of that."

[ Note: There was no verbal response fromthe Departnent.]

Senat or Tayl or voiced concern regarding nearshore stock
assessnents, and he recommended that the Comm ttee' s Departnent of
Fish & Game subcomm ttee consider contracting stock assessnments out
to qualified personnel as, he asserted it requires "significant"
trai ning and experience to conduct stock assessnments. He decl ared
that the State "has spent a fortune" on training and outfitting
divers who do not have the required stock assessnent skills. He
stated that while the fisheries have been expanded, the expansion
shoul d have been larger. Furthernore, he noted that as tinme goes
by, the State's divers have gained nore experience; however, he
continued to voice disappointnment in the growh of the nearshore

SFC- 03 (17) 03/ 25/ 03



"dive industry." He suggested that in addition to the option of
subcontracting out the dive assessnent responsibility, the
Uni versity of Al aska Marine Science program should be considered to
conduct the work. He stated that some marine fishery resource
stocks such as the red stickl eback have been "al nost deci mated" as
a result of the slow response and interpretation of current stock
assessnent nethodol ogy. He stressed that the stock assessnent
program shoul d be re-eval uat ed.

Co-Chair WI ken suggested that discussions on this matter should
include the recently appointed Comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Fi sh and Gane.

M. Brooks agreed that this would be beneficial. He noted that the
Department contracts with commercial divers for the very reason
Senat or Taylor spoke of, and he suggested that Senator Taylor
shoul d al so be involved in the discussions.

Bering Sea Crab Research- FY 04

$ 1,000, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38485

Project Type: Pl anning

Category: Natural Resources

Locati on: Kodi ak

Election District: Kodiak

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

Funds fromthe National Marine Fisheries Service (NWS) wll
be used to conduct research on various crab species in the
Bering Sea.

M. Brooks noted that this is the second year this federal funding
has been nade available to conduct king and tanner crab stocks
research in the Bering Sea and Al eutian |Islands. He noted that the
State nanages this resource and coordinates activities with the
Nat i onal Marine Fisheries Service (NVFS).

Senator O son asked whether any research activity would be
conducted to address the crab fishery in Norton Sound.

M . Brooks responded that although he is unavailable to attend
today's neeting, Doug Mecum the Director of the D vision of
Commerci al Fisheries could provide the answer to that question.

Senator O son avowed that nothing is being done in that area. He
shared the Norton Sound Econom c Devel opnment Council's comrents
that attested that, as a result of no research being conducted,
"fairly conservative" limtations are being placed on the crab

SFC- 03 (18) 03/ 25/ 03



fishery in the area.

M. Brooks commented that the information regarding research plans
for the Norton Sound area woul d be provided.

Senat or Bunde asked that the total anmount of State and federal
fundi ng that has been spent to subsidize comercial fishing in the
| ast three years be provided to the Conmittee. He stated that he
interprets the phrase "devel op commercial fisheries" to equate to
"subsi di ze commercial fisheries.”

Co-Chair WI ken responded that Senator Bunde's question would be
addr essed.

Senator B. Stevens infornmed the Commttee that, due to funding
constraints, crab stock assessnents have not been conducted on an
annual basis in several areas, including Norton Sound, and he
understood that the funding in this request would be used to
conduct assessnents on the large red and tanner crab fisheries in
the central Bering Sea area. He communicated that, for severa
years, only two of the seven types of crab fisheries in the Bering
Sea have received annual in-season stock assessnents.

Senator O son stated that this affirns that nothing is being done
in the Norton Sound area.

Senator B. Stevens agreed that, in addition to the Norton Sound
area, many areas have not received any research funding.

Wl dlife Conservation Laboratory Renode

$ 150, 000 Fi sh/ Gane Funds

Ref erence No.: AMD 38528

Proj ect Type: Renovation and Renodeli ng

Cat egory: Devel opnent

Locati on: Anchorage Areaw de

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

Amendnent

The Division of WIldlife Conservation has a need for
additional research | aboratory space in Anchorage. There is
exi sting space within the Anchorage Regional Ofice that can
be renodel ed, and conbi ned, while upgrading an existing |ab
that will result in a dual function research |aboratory to
nmeet our needs. Funds will be utilized for professional design
services, construction, and the purchase and upgrade of
necessary equi pnent. Some new | aboratory equi pnment planned for
the renodeled facility will be acquired with existing federa

SFC- 03 (19) 03/ 25/ 03



project funds. The departnent has received a positive
prelimnary permtting and code conpliance review from the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage/

Co-Chair WIlken identified this request as an anendnent that was
recei ved on March 24, 2003.

M. Brooks explained that sone square footage in the Anchorage
Regional Ofice that is currently being used as a warehouse coul d
be renodeled to accommodate needed wildlife research |aboratory
space.

In response to a question from Senator Bunde, Co-Chair WIken
explained that the NPR-A handout that he distributed at the
begi nning of the neeting reflects his calculations regarding the
NPR- A FY 04 allocation of royalties as foll ows.

FY 04 Distribution of Alaska's NPR-A Royalties

Federal NPR-A Receipts $67, 200, 000
Al aska's Gross Receipts (50% of federal receipts) $33, 600,000
Grants to Municipalities (First Priority)

($25, 011, 457)
Net (G oss Receipts | ess Gants) $8, 588, 543

Deposit to Permanent Fund (25% of Net)
(%2, 147, 135)
Deposit to the Public School Trust Fund
(.5% of Net) ($42,942)
Anmount avail abl e for appropriate to the Power Cost
Equal i zation and Rural Electric
Capi talization Fund ($6, 398, 466)

Deposit to the General Fund $0

Co-Chair WI ken comunicated that NPR-A's obligation to fund Grants
to Municipalities first, renders it unable to contribute to the
State's general fund account. Continuing, he comunicated that this
presents "a problent in that the State's Constitution specifies
that 25 percent of all State royalties nust be contributed to the
Per manent Fund. However, he clarified that, in NPR-A's case, 25
percent of the net, or the amount remamining after the Gants to
Muni cipalities is allocated, is contributed. He stated that this is
"di sturbing” because it is contrary to language in the State's
Constitution. He pointed out that this situation indicates that
"our State statutes and our federal |aw have trunped our State
Constitution, and indeed, today, we are spending the next
generation’s nonies out of NPR- A on ourselves, and not putting any

SFC- 03 (20) 03/ 25/ 03



aside as our Constitution says we should." He noted that while he
has no solution to the situation, he believed the "problem should
be "highlighted.” Continuing, he stated that, "we should all be
concerned about the way that we have interpreted NPR A devel opnent
as it doesn't benefit the general funds nor the Permanent Fund to
the degree that people of Alaska think it does or should.”

Senat or Bunde declared that "the Al aska Constitution trunps all
statutes,” and therefore, he asked whether a |egal opinion been
request ed.

Co-Chair WIlken stated that an existing legal ruling specifies
that, "in this particular case, because of federal |aw' the deposit
to the Permanent Fund is net receipts. However, he stated that this
ruling should be questioned, because he "can't square this with the
Constitution.™

Senat or Bunde questioned, therefore, whether the State should
continue to pronote developnment that is done at the State's
expense.

Senat or Taylor noted that the handout specifies that NPR- A funds
the Public School Trust and the Power Cost Equalization (PCE)
program

Co-Chair WIken responded that the Legislature could determ ne
whet her the funds woul d support PCE or the general fund.

Senat or Tayl or opined that because the Public School Trust predates
the Constitution, funds to it are allowed to be dedicated funds.
However, he stated that the funds could be dedicated, instead, to
education. Continuing, he noted that the Legislature could specify
that the funds currently being allocated to PCE could be all ocated
el sewhere; however, he recalled that the allocation of NPR-A funds
to the PCE programwas the result of a [unspecified] commtnent to
provi de a fundi ng nechani smfor the PCE foundati on.

Co-Chair WIken voiced that this is an issue that should be
addressed. He concluded that he has provided this information to
alert the Legislature that the NPR-A funding allocations do not
support the State's Constitution. He concluded that the words "' of
net' are what we are westling with today."

Paci fic Coastal Sal non Recovery Fund
$ 21,857,000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 33647

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Devel opnent

SFC- 03 (21) 03/ 25/ 03



Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

On- Goi ng Proj ect

The federal fiscal year 2004 (FFY03) appropriations
| egi slation contains funding for the Pacific Coastal Sal non
Recovery Fund. A total of $115 million was appropriated for
the states of Al aska, Washington, Oregon, and California.
Coordi nation of the fund is through the respective Governor's
of fices. The Al aska portion of the federal FYO3 appropriation
is $21.857 mllion. The Al aska portion if this funding comes
to the state through a Menorandum of Under st andi ng desi gnati ng
Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane as the program nmanager.

M . Brooks explained that this would be the fourth year that the
federal government has allocated Pacific Coastal Sal non Recovery
Funds to the State as part of a four-state appropriation. He stated
that to date, the State has received $60 million in funding. He
clarified that, in actuality, the federal appropriation is made to
the O fice of the Governor. Continuing, he noted that the purpose
of the fund is to provide for salnon habitat restoration, sal non
stock enhancenent, and sal non stock research, and construction of
sal non stock research facilities. He stated that of the total FY 04
four-state allocation of $115 mllion, A aska would receive
$21, 857,000. He noted that the Departnment and the adm nistration of
Gover nor Murkowski have been discussing how to best utilize these
f unds.

Senat or Hof f man asked when the Departnent and the Adm nistration
woul d be able to provide "the particulars” of this request to the
Legi sl ature.

M. Brooks responded that the noney has been allocated to the
State, and, wupon Legislative approval, the funding would be
avai lable as of July 1, 2003. He noted that the majority of the
proposed projects would be approximtely five-year prograns.

Senat or Hof f man acknow edged that $13.7 million of the total State
all ocation would be earmarked for federally identified projects.
However, he questioned as to whether the Legislature or the
Governor's Ofice would nake the final determnation as to how the
State's portion of the noney would be all ocated.

M. Brooks responded that the State currently has a Menorandum of
Understanding with "the National Fisheries Service on the
i npl enentation of this progranf as well as "the overriding
criteria” to which the funding nust be allocated. He stated that a
st akehol ders project review panel determined the State funding

SFC- 03 (22) 03/ 25/ 03



all ocations during the previous three years.

Senator B. Stevens affirmed that a portion of this noney is
federally earmarked to fund specific projects while a portion of it
could be utilized in the Governor's budget at the Governor's
di scretion. He nentioned that "t he stakehol der panel that revi ewed
grant applications” as established by the prior admnistration of
Governor Tony Know es was considered to be an "onerous application
process." Furthernore, he noted that sonme of the projects that were
funded, in sone people's interpretations, did not fit the specified
sal non enhancenent project criteria. He stated that the current
Adm nistration is reviewwng the grant procedure in order to
determ ne a new process through which funds woul d be distributed.

He nmentioned that, in addition to providing funds to the four
western states, sone funds are also allocated to Canada as part of
the Pacific Salnon Treaty agreenent. He noted that the

Adm nistration, and in particular, former Senator Al an Austernman
who is currently the CGovernor's Fisheries Policy Advisor, are
reviewing the process in order to determne the "best way" to
utilize these funds to enhance the fisheries and the industry.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whet her the funding coul d enhance any of the
State's Sal non Task Force recomendati ons.

Senator B. Stevens responded that the Task Force is involved in the
di scussi ons. However, he attested that the final determ nation of
how t he funds would be allocated is up to the Governor, not only in
Al aska, but also in each of the four states that receive this
f undi ng.

Senator Taylor declared that while it mght be the Governor’s
discretion to determne how the noney would be allocated, the
Legi sl ature, and specifically, this Conmttee nust appropriate it.
He stated that to approve this funding request, with only the
federal portion defined, would be a policy call.

Senator B. Stevens concurred that quite a bit of nobney is
undesi gnat ed.

Department of Environnental Conservation

AT EASE 10:21 AM/ 10:22 AM

M KE MAHER, Director, Division of Information and Adm nistrative
Servi ces, Departnent of Environnental Conservation, noted that he
was available to assist, as needed, wth the Departnent's
presentati on.

SFC- 03 (23) 03/ 25/ 03



Pre- harvest Geoduck PSP Testing

$ 250,000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 37713

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Natural Resources

Location: Sout heast Al aska

Election District: Southeast D stricts 1-5

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2005
One-Ti me Proj ect

Gowh in higher priced live sales of geoduck has been
hi ndered by a |lack of data on Paral ytic Shellfish Poi soning
(PSP). No historical or trend data is available that would
al l ow harvesters to focus their efforts in areas or tines of
year when PSP levels are |ow. Recognizing this shortfall in
data, a nonitoring program was developed by the state,
nati onal PSP experts, the U S. Food and Drug Adm nistration,
and the Sout heast Al aska Regional D ve Fisheries Association
(SARDFA). This funding will pay nonitoring and data collection
costs for two years.

KRI STIN RYAN, Acting Director, D vision of Environnental Health,
Departnment of Environmental Conservation, informed that this
funding would allow the Departnent to test PSP levels in the
geoduck harvest areas. She stated that |ive sales of geoducks by
commerci al harvesters have been negatively affected by the | ack of
sufficient data regarding when PSP | evels m ght be too high. She
noted that acquiring this information would financially benefit
comercial harvesters in Al aska. Additionally, she noted that
Al askan harvesters are at a di sadvantage because their live sale
conpetitors in British Col unbia and Washi ngton have accunul ated a
substantial quantity of PSP information for their areas. She shared
that a data devel opnent plan has been fornulated by the State and
other entities to address this data collection need.

JULI E DECKER, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Regional D ve
Fi sheries Association testified via tel econference fromWangell to
voi ce support for this programas it would increase the opportunity
for live geoduck sales. She stated that substantial progress has
been made in the fishery and that harvests have increased froma
|l ow of ten percent of the allowable harvest to approxinmately 50
percent this past year. She nentioned that the commercial fishers
continue to work with the Departnent of Environnmental Conservation
to develop new harvest areas and further the success of the
fishery.

Ms. Decker voiced the organi zation's support for another Departnent

of Environnental Conservation project, the Seaf ood and Food Safety
Lab Repl acenent, Reference No. 37753. She noted that building the

SFC- 03 (24) 03/ 25/ 03



| aboratory in Anchorage woul d be beneficial to the fishery as water
sanpl es and ot her research would be able to reach that |ocation in
a tinely and efficient manner.

Senator Taylor thanked M. Decker for her involvenent in the
geoduck PSP testing project. Continuing, he asked her whether being
required to ship Southeast Al aska water sanplings to an Anchorage
based | aboratory m ght present |ogistical problens.

Ms. Decker responded that there is a 30-hour maxinumtine limt on
wat er sanplings, and she detailed that getting the sanple to the
Anchorage | aboratory in that anount of tine would require hiring a
small plane pilot to collect and carry the sanple fromits renote
harvesting area in Southeast Al aska to an airport served by Al aska
Airlines where it would then be transported to Anchorage. Once the
sanpl e arrived in Anchorage, she continued, a courier would deliver
the sanple to the | aboratory.

Ms. Decker noted that, in a situation involving |ive geoducks, the
shi ppi ng nust be expedited because the geoducks nust reach their
destination alive. She stated that this tinmefrane is a maxi mum of
two to four days. She characterized that, in addition to the
product being "touchy,” the market is "touchy" in that the
distributors nmust be assured that the Al askan product would be
avai l able on an on-going basis or they would contract with other
rival sources for the product. She stressed that a tinely
| aboratory testing cycle is critical to the industry.

Senat or Tayl or declared that it seens ridicul ous that any product
from Southeast Alaska must be transported 1300 mles to a
| aboratory in Anchorage for testing.

Co-Chair W1l ken asked for alternati ves.

Senat or Tayl or suggested that a |aboratory be located "in close
proximty" to where the resource woul d be harvested. He stated that
such a |l ocation woul d enhance the viability of the product.

Senator O son asked Ms. Decker whether the small percentage of
geoducks quota being harvested was the result of areas not being
permtted for harvest due to "hot" PSP |evels.

Ms. Decker stated that, a few years prior, the geoduck harvest
anounted to approximately ten percent of the allowable live sale
guota. She stated that, although sufficient on-going data is
unavailable, it is believed that two of the fourteen-geoduck
harvesting areas have high or "generally hot" PSP |evels. She
stated that this would affect approximtely twenty percent of the

SFC- 03 (25) 03/ 25/ 03



overall quota. She stated that other areas are "at tines clean and
at times hot." She avowed that the purpose of this request woul d be
to extend the PSP testing to determ ne whether any trends devel op
in the levels of PSP. She stated that, in addition to the
insufficient harvest area data and high PSP | evel s, another factor
in the ten-percent of quota harvest was that, at the tine, no pre-
certification program existed. She stated that were an area pre-
certified, then a market for the product would have been
established and woul d have resulted in a nore efficient process.

Senat or Bunde asked how much is charged for the sanpling tests.

Ms. Decker responded that currently the State charges $125 per PSP
test.

Senat or Bunde asked whether transportation costs would be levied in
addition to the test fee.

Ms. Decker concurred.

Senator B. Stevens asked the nobst recent year's total harvest
wei ght .

Ms. Decker stated that the nobst recent harvest totaled 280, 000
pounds, and she el aborated that the harvest has been as high as
400, 000 pounds. She stated that as new harvest areas are devel oped,
the goal is to reach a sustainabl e harvest range of approximtely
500, 000 pounds a year. She stated that as enhancenent projects and
ot her progranms are devel oped, the harvest range should continue to
ri se beyond the 500, 000- pound | evel.

Senat or Stevens asked the price difference between |live and frozen
geoduck sal e prices.

Ms. Decker responded that |ive geoducks sell for approximately five
to ten tinmes the price of the frozen product. She exanpled that the
price mght average five to seven dollars per pound for a live sale
to one dollar per pound for a frozen sale.

Co-Chair WIlken inquired as to the |location of the geoduck market.
Ms. Decker responded that the primary market for geoducks is in
Asia. She noted that the donmestic market primarily consists of
Asi an restaurants.

Co-Chair WIlken surmsed therefore, that the primary market is
overseas in Asia.

SFC- 03 (26) 03/ 25/ 03



Ms. Decker agreed.

Seaf ood and Food Safety Lab Repl acenent
$ 14, 285, 000

$14, 145, 000 COPs

$ 140,000 M sc Earn
Ref erence No.: 37753
Project Type: Health and Safety
Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/ 2006
One-Ti me Proj ect
The current seafood and food safety |aboratory |acks basic
infrastructure to provide a safe and secure |aboratory
facility. This project contracts for services to conplete
construction of a replacenent Food Safety Laboratory on state
| and.

Ms. Ryan explained that, in addition to certifying seafood
products, the food safety l|aboratory certifies commercial food
i ndustry food products.

SFC 03 # 30, Side A 10:38 AM

Ms. Ryan infornmed that the |aboratory works with the conmercia
food industry to assure that the products are shelf-stable and
woul d not be harnful to consuners. Furthernore, she noted that, in
an effort to gather information to offset negative national fish
consunption advisories, the food safety |aboratory evaluated
approxi mately 600 fish sanples the prior year for such things as
heavy netal toxicity from mercury, |ead, and cadm um She stated
that the results of these tests would be forthcomng and are
eagerly awaited by fisherman. In addition, she stated that the
| aboratory certifies private |aboratories that conduct drinking
water testing and conducts horse and cow testing to prevent
rei ntroduction of diseases such as tuberculosis into the State. She
concluded that, in total, approximtely 9,000 sanple tests are
conducted each year. She disclosed that of that nunber, 6,000
sanpling tests are related to PSP shellfish testing, and 4,000 of
t hose sanplings are from Sout heast Al aska.

Ms. Ryan stated that because the mpjority of the tests that are
conducted are in close proximty to Anchorage, it has been deened
the appropriate "central" location for the | aboratory. She asserted
that the current | aboratory has been functioning for 33-years in a

SFC- 03 (27) 03/ 25/ 03



substandard facility that was originally built as a grocery store
in the city of Palnmer. She pointed out that while the current
| aboratory | ease has been extended to Decenber 2006, there is on-
goi ng concern about disposal of waste products, and the appropriate
sanpl e handling. She asked that funding be allocated this year to
avoid a delay in the renodeling of the identified Anchorage
facility.

Co-Chair Geen noted that the sanple handling concerns are a
procedural rather than facility issue.

Ms. Ryan concurred.

Co- Chair Green asked whether the | aboratory duplicates tests that
are conducted el sewhere in the State.

Ms. Ryan replied that she is unaware of any duplicate testing. She
pointed out that the testing that is conducted at the "State
certified" laboratory "is required for specific certification” such
as the PSP testing.

Co-Chair Green asked the definition of a "state certified | ab."

Ms. Ryan responded that it nust be United States Departnent of
Agriculture (USDA) certified.

Co-Chair Green asked whet her a USDA enpl oyee must be on prem ses.

Ms. Ryan replied no. She noted that the I|aboratory has also
recei ved water testing certification fromthe federal Environnental
Protection Agency (EPA) as well as federal Food & Drug
Adm ni stration (FDA) certification for PSP testing.

Co-Chair Green asked whether other | aboratories in the State could
be certified.

Ms. Ryan affirnmed they could; however, she stated that the
certifications mght be limted by a facility's capabilities.

Senat or Bunde asked whether the | aboratory has a user fee structure
in place for the various tests.

Ms. Ryan responded that sone user fees cover the cost of the
service and sone do not. She noted that, while a fee is charged for
the PSP testing, no fee is being assessed for the contam nate
sanple testing, which is being conducted for data gathering. She
stated that there are fees for the drinking water testing.

SFC- 03 (28) 03/ 25/ 03



Senat or Bunde asked whether the water-testing fee covers the cost
of the service.

Ms. Ryan woul d supply that information, as she was unsure whet her
all its associated costs were covered.

Senat or Hof fman asked whether there is a seafood |aboratory in
Unal aska, specifically one that conducts king crab tests.

Ms. Ryan responded that while there is no state | aboratory there,
she was unsure as to whether there is a commercial |aboratory.

Senator Hoffman asked whether the separate Certificates of
Participation (COP) bond bill legislation that would provide the
authority to fund this project has been introduced to the
Legi sl ature.

Ms. Ryan replied that it has not, of yet, been introduced.

Senator Hoffman clarified that the appropriation for this request
is contingent upon the passage of that |egislation. Therefore, he
asked why that |egislation has not been introduced.

Ms. Ryan responded that, at the request of sonme senators that
further evaluation be conducted regarding the capacity of the
Al aska Seafood International building to hold the | aboratory, the
Departnent has not furthered that |egislation. Therefore, she noted
that the bond bill could not be introduced until the final
determ nation is made regarding the site of the new | aboratory.

M. Mher concurred that the site nust be identified before the

bond bill could be presented. He furthered that, in order, to
receive bond bill proceeds; the |aboratory nust be a stand-al one
facility.

Senat or Hof f man asked whether the bond bill would have adequate

time to be approved this year, were it determned that a stand-
alone facility would be the best option.

M. Maher voiced optimsm that the determ nation would be nade
soon, as he noted sufficient time nust be allowed to secure a
fundi ng nechani sm

Senat or Hof fman asked for a specific timefrane.

M. Maher responded that a determ nation should be available within
seven days.

SFC- 03 (29) 03/ 25/ 03



Ms. Ryan noted that the cost analyses for constructing a new
| aboratory or renodeling the Al aska Seafood International site has
been conpl eted. She stated that the Al aska Industrial Devel opment &
Export Authority (AIDEA) is currently conducting | ease anal yses.
She stated that the next step would be to determ ne which option
woul d be pursued. She voiced optimsmthat this determ nation would
be finalized within the next week.

In response to a question from Senator O son, Ms. Ryan reiterated
that of the 9,000 total sanpling tests conducted by the |aboratory;
2,000 were PSP tests that were conducted on sanples from Prince
W1 liam Sound and Cook Inlet and 4,000 were PSP tests conducted on
sanpl es from Sout heast Al aska.

Senator Tayl or concluded that a final decision on the |ocation of
the | aboratory nust be made before action could be taken on this
request.

Co- Chair W/I ken agreed.

Def ending State Primacy of the Alaska Air Permt Program

$ 150, 000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 37764

Project Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Law and Justice

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

Fundi ng for the cost of preparing and defending the State of
Al aska's appeal before the US Suprene Court to overturn the
9th Court of Appeals court decision in the matter of the Red
Dog mne air permt and supporting prinmacy of the State's air
permt program

TOM CHAPPLE, Director, Division of Air & Water Quality, Departnent
of Environnental Conservation, testified via tel econference from an
offnet site. He stated that this project would allow the State to
contract wwth a law firmto present its appeal of the air quality
ruling before the US Suprene Court "sonetine this fall."

Senat or Hof fman asked the reason this request is in the capita
budget rather than in the operating budget.

M. Chappl e responded that it is in the capital budget because it

is a one-tinme, short-termproject. He noted that the granting of a
hearing before the US Suprene Court was a recent devel opnent.

SFC- 03 (30) 03/ 25/ 03



Senat or O son asked the outcone were the State's position denied.

M . Chappl e responded that this appeal would be the "last judicia

process” regarding the air quality permt decision by the EPA that
is contrary to the State's permtting policy. He stated that were
the EPA ruling upheld, the State's "permtting program would be
subject to second-guessing” by the Seattle office of the EPA
"unless the | aw were to change at sone future date.”

Senator O son asked whether the level of this request would
increase in FY 05 were the State's position to not prevail.

M. Chapple clarified that this appeal wuld be a one-tine
presentation to the US Suprene Court; therefore, he stated that the
request would not be presented in FY 05.

Co-Chair WIlken noted that the inpact to the Red Dog M ne, were the
EPA's position upheld, is defined on page four of the backup
material. He read that ".the EPA s technol ogy would cost up to $1.5
mllion nore a year in operating costs and up to $10 million nore
in construction cost than the state's solution." He stated that
"this is a big deal” to the State.

Senator O son declared that it would certainly affect the district
he represents.

Envi ronnental Monitoring and Assessnent of Surface Waters

$ 1,763,495 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 37756

Project Type: Health and Safety

Category: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008
One-Ti me Proj ect

Federal funding from the EPA will enable Al aska to conduct
water qualify nonitoring, with initial assessnents in coasta
sout heast Al aska and the Yukon River watershed, to contribute
to the devel opnent of baseline information through the Al aska
Clean Water Actions (ACEA) plan on the health of Al aska
waters. The baseline information that will be gathered from
this project will be the basis for ensuring that Al aska's
wat ers remai n workabl e, fishable, drinkable and sw mmabl e.

M. Chapple stated that this request woul d enable the Departnent to
utilize federal funds to conduct baseline water quality nonitoring
"for sedinent, aquatic species, and the water columm itself." He
noted that this research is being also conducted throughout all

SFC- 03 (31) 03/ 25/ 03



national coastline areas. He stated that previous nonitoring has
been conducted in Prince WIliam Sound and in | ower Cook Inlet. He
stated that this funding would allow nonitoring to be conducted in
Sout heast Al aska and the Yukon River drainage. He noted that this
research would provide the State with pertinent information that
could be used to enhance resource devel opnent and environnenta
managenent efforts.

Senator Bunde asked for the definition of benthic species, as
identified on page five in the Project Description | anguage.

M. Chappl e expl ained that benthic species are small organi sns such
as sea lice and worns "that live in the sand in the bottom
sedi nent . "

Senat or Taylor inquired as to how the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation "has operated" w thout conducting research into water
quality.

M. Chapple responded that the mpjority of the water quality
nonitoring "to date has been driven by a need to know' basis as
proj ects devel op, as, he attested, the Departnent has not had the
resources with which to conduct water quality research on its vast
coastal area. He stated that, while other agencies have supplied
information to the Departnent, the Departnent "has always had a
| ack of" water quality baseline information

Senat or Taylor surm sed therefore that the Departnent, over the
past 20-year period, has "only focused" on water testing when a
need arose. He uttered "anmazenent that an ongoi ng" investigative
program has not been conducted as he voiced that arsenic and ot her
danger ous substances could be, for exanple, in water systens.

M. Chapple clarified that this project would be federally funded.
He stated that he is not inferring that water nonitoring is not
bei ng conducted in the State, but rather that the Departnment does
not have conprehensive or organized data. In addition, he noted
that pre-devel opment baseline nonitoring is conducted in areas,
primarily by prospective devel opers, with guidance fromthe State.
He comented that while sonme baseline nonitoring has been
conducted, it has not been at the broad-based |evel that would be
provi ded by this project.

Senator B. Stevens asked whether the federal government or the
St ate devel oped the Environnmental Monitoring and Assessnent ( EMAT)
protocols that would be used in the project.

M . Chappl e expl ained that the EMAP procedures are based primarily

SFC- 03 (32) 03/ 25/ 03



on a national design; however, he stated that it could be tailored
to meet the State’s "uni que" needs.

Co-Chair Wl ken ordered the bill to be held in Conm ttee.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:58 AM

SFC- 03 (33) 03/ 25/ 03



